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(WHEREUPON, the jury came into open

court at 1:31 p.m.)
"THE BAILIFF: The jury is seated, Your Honor.
THE COURT: A1l right. Mr. Foreman, I am

informed by the bailiff that you all have reached a

~verdict; is that correct?

THE FOREMAN: Yes, ma'am, we have.

THE COURT: And is that verdict unanimous?

THE FOREMAN: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: If you can hand that to the‘
bailiff, he will pass it up,.and then I will give'w
it to the clerk to publish.

| (CombiieSn)

(Court views vefdict form.) ,

THE -COURT: - A11 right. I will ask the c1erkl
tb pubTish the verdict. "

VERDICT

THE CLERK: The Court of General Sessions of -

the Fifth Judicial Circuit, State of South

Carolina, County of Richland, State of South

Carolina v. Emmanuel Elleby, Indictment Number

2014-GS-40-7355 and Indictment Number 20145GS-40‘
7364 .
As to the indictment alleging armed robbery:

We, the jury, unanimously find the Defendant
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guilty.

As to the indictment alleging kidnapping: We,
the jury, unanimously find-the'Defendant guilty.
:Signed by the foreperson, Derek Scott.
And -t 15 dated 9/17/2015.
Mr. Foreman, 1is this your verdict, and the‘
verdict of the entire jury? |
_ THE FOREMAN: Yes, it is.
' THE CLERK: Thank.you.
~ THE COURT: .A111r59ht. AndlI‘wj]]Iask the
clerk to po]]:fhe jury. | |
THE‘CLERK: Ladies and Qenﬁ]emen'of‘the.jUry,
I am going té ask each of you two:qﬁestjons, and I
need you to answer both the questions.._ |
Number:244. .Waé-this-your verdict?
" THE JUROR: Yes. | | | |
CTHE CLERK: Is it still your verdict?
THE JUROR: Yes. | |
* THE CLERK: Number 238. . Was‘this your
verdjct?-'
THE JUROR: Yes.
THE CLERK: Is it still your verdict?
THE JUROR: Yes.
-THE‘CLERK:‘ Number 270. Was this your

verdict?
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1 THE CLERK: Is it still your verdict?

2 THE JUROR: Yes.

3 THE CLERK: Number 26. Was this your verdict?
4 THE JUROR: Yes.

5 THE CLERK: Is it still your verdict?

6 THE JUROR: Yes.

7 THE CLERK: Number 207. Was this your

8 verdict? .

9 THE JUROR: Yes.

10 THE CLERK: Is it still your verdict?

11 THE JUROR:. Yes. _ ‘
12 THE CLERK: Number 20. Was this your verdiét?“'
13 THE JUROR: Yes. |
14 THE CLERK: Is it éti]]_your verdict?

15 THE JUROR: Yes.

16 THE CLERK: Number 49. Was this your verdict?
17 THE JUROR: Yes.

18 THE CLERK: Is it still your verdict?

19 THE JUROR: Yes.
20 THE CLERK: The jury is polled, Your Honor.
21 THE COURT: A1l right. Let the record reflect
22 that all of the jurors have indicated that this is
23 their verdict. This would be a unanimous verdict
24 of the jury.
25 Ladies and gentlemen of the jury, I would like
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to thank you all for your service here this week.
I hope that your time here has been enjoyable and
that you have learned something about our court
systeh, learned something about the court system
and the judicial process.

I believe the clerk will have some remarks --

some paperwork for you, not remarks, but some

‘paperwork, but you will be free to leave and

dismissed for the rest of the week.
But, once again, I would like to thank you on

behalf of the State, on behalf of the Defense, on

- behalf of the court staff here, énd‘the,c1erk df

~court for your service here this week.

Thank'you.' And have a wonderful weekend. And-
as we told you, I don't know if they told you this
on Monday,'but you will not have to serve in this 
court for three years. I cannot promise you you :
will not have federal court, magistrate's cburt or
city court; but as for this court you wj11'not havé

to serve here for three years unless you choose to

.do so after the first year.

A1l right, thank you. Have a wonderful
weekend.

(WHEREUPON, the jury is excused at 1:36 -

p.m.)
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1 THE COURT: A11 right. I don't know if you

2 have a'Sentencezsheef.

3 MS. SAMPSON: No.

4 THE COURT: I think the Defense is in the

5 position that the ten déys‘is after the sentence is

6 imposed. And I think we all agree, but just to -
.\7 protect the record, I will allow ten days for

8 || ‘motions after'-F.I'11,go ahead and do the sentence,

9 but allow forifen days after the sentence is |
10 ~pub1fshed for motions to be filed with.the courf;-
11 MS. SAMPSON: Do yoh want me td get you some
12 ‘sentencingiéheets?'~ ~‘ R |

13 THE éOURT: Yes. I have to seé] it.

14 MS. SAMPSON: I couldn't leave the room after
15 “the gquestion. - R

16  THE COURT: Yes, I will need a 'sentencing
A shéet. And T will Seal-it and give it fo'the"

18  c1eFk; _ | "

19 MS. SAMPSON:. Okay. I'l11 do that now and get
20 it to you. '
21 | MR:‘RUFFIN: And I guess I just want to renew
22 all my objections and pretrial motions for the

23 .record, Judge.

24 | THE COURT: Yes, sir. A1l right. And those
25 are preserved for the record and respectfu]]y.
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denied. And, once again, you will have ten days
after the publishing of the verdict -- I mean, of
the sentencing sheets to file any appeal.

MR. RUFFIN: Thank you, Judge.

MS. EIGENBROT: Thank you, Your Honor.

(WHEREUPON, the proceedings were

concluded at 1:37.p,m.)

(END OF TRANSCRIPT)
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
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COUNTY OF RICHLAND
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true, accurate and comp]efe‘Transcript of Recofd of fhe
pfoceédings had and evidence introduced in the trial of
the captioned case,-re1at1ve to appeal, in the Court of
General Sessions for Richland County,zSouth Carolina, on
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I do further certify that I am neither of kin,

counsel nor interest to any party hereto. .

‘April 24, 2016

s | Deborat M. Melundy, BPR

Deborah M. McCurdy, RPR
Fifth Circuit Court Reporter




—

A W N =~ O ©W 0 ~N O A WD 2,2 O W N b DN

N
($)}

509

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) ' ' '

; )COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

COUNTY OF RICHLAND ) 2014-GS-40-07355
2014-GS-40-07364

State of South Carolina,
Plainti ff,
Vs, | TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD

Emmanuel Elleby,

e N N N “saaa” "o s s e’

Defendant.

October 16, 2015 .
Columbia, South Carolina

BEFORE:
THE HONORABLE DEANDREA G. BENJAMIN, JUDGE.

APPEARANCES:

APRIL W. SAMPSON, ASSISTANT SOLICITOR
Attorney for the Plaintiff

ADAM S:. RUFFIN, ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER
Attorney for the Defendant '

DEBORAH M. McCURDY, RPR
Official Court Reporter




s

510

—

N
(&)

INDEX OF WITNESSES
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during these‘broceedings.)

EXHIBITS

‘(WHEREUPON, no exhibits were introduced

- during these_proceedings.)




=

N N N N N N - - R -— —_ N - - —_
(6} BN w N - (@) © (o] ~l [0)) (&)} = w N

511

O O 0O N o g S~ W N

OCTOBER 16, 2015

MS. SAMPSON: For the record, April Sampson,
for the State, here with>Adam Ruffin. Mr. Elleby
is present in the courtroom.

'Mr. Elleby is charged with armed robbery and -
kidnapping. Mr. Elleby had a trial which began on
September 29th?

MR. RUFFIN: I think.

MS. SAMPSON: Maybe September 30th. Around
then. Or the 28th, that week.A '

MR. RUFFIN: Around-then.

MS. SAMPSON: And ended with a conviction.

Mr. Elleby was tried in his absence over the
objection of the Defense. ‘

The jury came back with a guilty verdict on
both charges. And we.are here today for his
sentence. |

THE COURT: Is Mr. Elleby all right?

"MR. RUFFIN: I mean, he is here, Judge. 1 was
instructed by medical personnel the other day that
shaking from side to side is impossible during a
seizure. |

THE COURT: Sir?

THE COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry? I didn't hear

you.
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MR. RUFFIN: I was told by medical personnel
the othervday that shaking side to side is
impossible during a seizure.

THE COURT: Is impossible?

MR. RUFFIN: To shake from side to side.

THE COURT: Mr. Elleby?

MS. SAMPSON: As the Court is aware, he has
done this before.

MR. RUFFIN: Judge, I'm fine to go forward
under the sealed sentence. |

" THE COURT: A1l right. Do y'all want.to'ca1T
an ambulance up here for him? -

MS. SAMPSON: You can take Him back
downstairé, I assume, as soon as she sentences.

| THE DEPUTY: Yes, we will take him downstairs.

THE COURT: ATl right. I am going to unseal
the senténce. I will unseal the sentence.

‘Mr. Elleby was tried in his absence and found
guilty by the jury. The State had served the
Defendant with a Tife without pafo]e notice on --’i
don't have the exact date.

On Indictment 2014-GS-40-7355, Mr. Elleby, the

‘sentence of the Court is that you will be sentenced

to the State Department of Corrections for -- and

the indictment is for armed robbery -- Tife without
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parole. And the sentence date is September 17th,

2015.

MS. SAMPSON: Sorry, I stated the wrong date.

I couldn't remembér.

THE COURT: A1l right. Thank you. And you
are going to get me the --'yoﬁ have ten days to
file the appeal. |

 MR. RUFFIN: Yes. And, Judge, I also have
some'post;fr1a1'mptfons I'17 file with the Courf,
if that is all right with you.

THE COURT: A1l right, post-trial motions?
Yes. Ten days is good? . |

 MR. RUFFIN: Right. |
" THE COURT: Let me know if you need an

- extension. .

"MR. RUFFIN: Thank you, Judge.

MS. SAMPSON: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: " Ahd,.Mr. Ruffin, we w11j handle
the -- I guess there.is a week in November I'm
here?v_i

MS. SAMPSON: November 9th.

THEFCOURT: Y'all get togethér and Tet me know

~-what works for you and I'11 block off the

afternoon.

MR. RUFFIN: Okay. Thank you, Judge.
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MS. SAMPSON:- Thank you, Your Honor.
(WHEREUPON, the proceedings were concluded.)

(END OF TRANSCRIPT)
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INDEX OF WITNESSES

(WHEREUPON, no witnesses were called

during these proceedings.)

EXHIBITS

(WHEREUPON, no exhibits were introduced

during these proceedings.)
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NOVEMBER 12, 2016

THE COURT: Yes, ma'am?

MS. SAMPSON: May it please the Court? We're
here on the State v. Emmanuel Elleby.

As Your Honor is aware, Mr. Elileby was
convicted of armed robbery ‘and kidnapping back in
September of this year. The trial was done in his
absence. He did not show up, even though he was
provided notice.

After the édnyiction, once 'he was appreﬁéndéd,
he was brought in early -- in October, I believe it
was, tokbe served with the notice of -- to be
served with his 1ife sentence.

At that point you took that in. And
Mr. Ruffin filed timely his motion. And we're here
today on that motion.

THE COURT: Yes, sir?

MR. RUFFIN: This is my motion to reconsider
sentence. So I would just like to start with what
I'm asking you to do. I'm ask{ng you to yacate the
1ife sentence and resentence Mr. Elleby in the
range of 10 to 30 years.

South Céro]ina's 1ife without parole statute,
which I actually don't have in front of me, I think

it is 17-25-10, or something like that, but
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basically the only Timits in that statute is, does
a person have a record that makes them e1fgib1e for
it. |

Beyond that, the sole --.all the discfetion
then is up to the individual prosecutor in a case.
So they have total discretion as to who they will
seek it against. and who they wf11 not.

So basically my contention 1is -that the South

Carolina General Assembly has created a system that .

is inherently arbitrary as to who gets .1ife without
parole and who does not just based on the
individual prosecutor's feeling.

The two casés that I'm going to rely on are
actually death penalty cases. If I could pass them
up, Judge. |

THE COURT: Yes, sir.

(Complies.)

MR. RUFFIN: It is Furman v. Georgia and
Gregg -- or Georgia v. Gregg.. I'm sure you are
familiar with those cases.

Furman, which was in 1972, I think established
or highlights the problem of arbitraryvsentencing;‘
And if I could, I'd 1ike to maybe read just a |
little bit from the case.. I think if you will Took

on Page 5. I know these are long opinions, that is




520

o © oo N o o b~ w N =

[6)] H w N —_ [en] (o] [0 0] ~ (0] [6;] LN w N -

why I want to point you to the page.
And in Furman, as you know, Furman v. Georgia,

the only thing that the majority agreed to was that

‘the death penalty as applied in those cases was

unconstitutional. And there were five justices
that agreed to fhat rationale. \

There is some disagreement as to the
rationale. Some of the justices found the death
penalty was unconstitutional always, and some found
that it was unconstitutional only in this case, of
as applied in these cases.

I'd 1ike to point you to Pagé 5;fthe first
paragraph. This is Justice Douglas' concurrence, 1
believe.

‘And he says:

""We cannot say from.the facts

disclosed 1n'thesé records that-

these defendants were sentehced to

death beéause they were b1éck."

Now, that is not my argumeht for Mr. El1eby.
I'm not arguing that they sought the 1life without'
parole because he is black.

They go on to say:

"Yet our task is not'restricted to

an effort to divine what motives
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impelled these death penalties.
‘Rather, we dea1 with a system of
law and of justice that leaves to
the uncontrolled discretion of

judges -or juriés the determination

whether defendants committing these-

crimes should die or be imprisoned.

Under these laws no standards |

govern the'se1eqt10n of the .

penalty. : People 1live or die,

dependént on the whim of one man or

of 12.". .

There {s more Tanguagg in here that
Tike to‘pbint‘out to you. On.the'boftqm
Judge: A |

""In determining whether a

punishment comports with human

dignity, we are aided by a second

I would .

of Page 9,

principle inherent in the Clause ---_

" that the State must not arbitrarily
fnf]ict a severe punishment. The"
‘pr1n01p1e derives from the notion
that the State does not respéct
human dignﬁty when, without reason,

it inflicts upon some people a
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severe punishment that it does not

inflict upon others.- Indeed, the

very words 'cruel and unusual'

imply condemnation of the-arbitrary

inf]ictioh of severe punishments.”

So Furmah‘I think and those sentiments afe
echoed.throughout‘the céncufrihg’opinions in that
césé. |

‘Basica11y, in Furman, .the sentencer waé a
jury.. So 1 Understand there is bbvious]yia

differenceAhere because undér;S6Uth Carolina's life

‘without parole statute;*the>ééntencer essentially
: becomes the State.ﬁ,Jhey get to choose whether you

are’going to 'get life or whether you are going to

get something less thgn 1ife.
“And I 'don't think there can be any contention

that among peopﬁe'who are eligible under the Tlife

" without parole statute, there is huge disparity in

théir sentences and huge -- énd I think the reason

- is because of the arbitrafiness -- the State'is

going to pick among which armed robbers, which -

mUrderers,-which rapistsrare going to gét l1ife and

which are going fo get something‘1eSé;than life.
.So that is the problem, I think. And even

though these were death penaity cases, you know, I
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think that from a practical standpoint, the death
penalty is rapidly disappearing in South Carolina
and across the country.

I don't think South Carolina has:executed
somebody in four years or so. There are no
scheduled executions on the horizon, from my
knowledge. So the penalty of death today in 2015
is the.pfaqtica1 equiva]enf3of 1ife without parole.
With most Defendants, whether you are sentenced to
death or whethen you'are:sentencedktoffife withoutf
parole, you will go to prisoﬁ and be locked in a
cage until you die.. Same'end result. -

And so I think that 1ife without parole,

because 1t is becoming -- rapidly becoming the most

severe punishment a person-can receivq.f-'not/on1y
in this state, but anywheré in the country -- I
think that this arbitrariness standard should be
applied also to 1ife without parole. |

Now, what I'm.-- I.waht to just say real qufck
what I'm not‘arguing is, I'm not. arguing that 1life
is unreasonably disproportionafe. That argument

has been raised in a number of 1ife without parole

.cases under the cruel and unusual punishment. That

is not what I'm arguing. I'm not saying that it is

"disproportionate. What I'm saying is that it is
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arbitrar11y-inf116ted; And it is the most severe

punishment that you can receive.

-

Now, Gregg comes along, Judge, Gregg v.

.-Georgia ' came along and.bésica11y said -- this is

four years after Furman. Georgia had revamped --

rewritten their death penalty statute toéinc1ude a

‘bunch of factors. 'But basically they were saying:

. We can't haQe juries or judges
- sentencing beop1e, you. know,
 W1thout regards.to some standard or
without béing in accordance with a
séf of~standards.fhat W111.redu6e
'.the‘arbifrarineés qf the infliction
of these penalties. -

- So Georgia ---and South Caroliha also has a

" very similar death peha1ty statute, which basically .

-~ Tlists.a bunch of aggregatofs and mitigators for a

juror or a jddge'to consider before they iﬁpdse a-

1ife without pafo]e sentence or a death sentence.

‘Now, I understand that.thé'discretion'is

. invested in the prosecutor, so we don't have an

issue where -- and my argument is not that the
judge must have discretion to not sentence someone
to 1life, my argument is not that a jury must be the

sentencer. That is not what I'm érguing here




-_—

E=Y w N - o © oo ~ (o)} (4, H w N —_ o O o0} ~ (o)} (6} EN w N

N
(&)

10

525

today.

What I'm arguing is that if the prosecutor is
going to be given that discretion -- which under
the statute the only thing that they need to
consider 1is, are you eligible or not. There is no
standard beyond thaf. My argument is that there
should be, that there must be, to comport with the
8th and 14th Amendments, there has to be standards
beyond, do you qualify or not.

You know, I don't know what the policies are
throughout the state as to when they seek 1ife and
when they do not seek 1ife. What I do know is that

I have represented several people who are LWOP

ﬁ.-e1igib1e and who did not receive LWOP. They pled

guilty. i

"You know, in my experience it seems that it is
used as a hammer basically to punish people who
don't plead guilty. That seems to be when they
seek ft; You know, you either -- so, in my
experience, Judge, and I don't‘have the resources
to do a statewide, you know, review of all Tife
eligible cases in the state, but what I can tell
you from my experience is it seems that the
prosecutoré in this circuit consider two things:

are you eligible; and are you willing to plead




526

o W O N OO g AW N -

N ON RN N NN =) e a a  a A @A A -
g A W N =, O © 0N 0 RN

11

guilty.

If you are eligible and not willing to plead

guilty, then they will seek 1ife at trial:. That is

my understanding of it.

I believe that that is arbitrary and that
there needs to be more standardé in place when the
State is going to single-handedly choose whether
someone receives what I be}ieve is impractical
or -- the practical reality is that this s thé
most severe punishment a person can receive.

| For'that reason, I wdﬁ]d ask that you strike,
the 1ife sentence given to Mr. Elleby as having
been arbitrarily inflicted upon him and that you
resentence him in the range of 10 to 30, which 1is
what armed robbery carries. And, of course, he was
also convicted of kidnapping, which is zero to. 30.

So I suppose, you know, he is facing 10 to 60, up

. to 60 years, if you were to run the sentences

consecutively.
So that is what I'm asking for, Judge.
THE COURT! A1l right. Thank you. 1I-guess

you are asking me to find the LWOP statute

“unconstitutional?

MR. RUFFIN: Well, I believe that is the only

way you could actually do what I'm asking for,
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because it is mandatory, obviously, once the State
seeks it and he is convicted, the imposition of the
life sentence is mandatory upon you. The
discretion is not yours.

. So what I'm asking you, because I think the
only way that you could sentence him to anything
other than 1ife is to find the statute is
unconstitutional by being arbitrarily inflicted at
the whim of 1nd1vfdua1 prosecutors.

And for that reason, yes, I am asking you to
strike that statute and resentence him.

THE COURT: Al11 right. Thank you.

Yes, ma'am?

MS. SAMPSON: Thank you, Your Honor. 'May it
please the Court?

Just for the record, the statute number to
serve life without the possibility of parole is
17-25-45, so we're clear?

And what Mr. Ruffin has failed to give you is
any case law that supports what he is doing. What
I can give you is State v. Jones, which is 344 S.C.

48, 543 S.E.2d 541. This is a 2001 case. Our

-Supreme Court stated that:

"Mandatory 1ife without possibility

of parole does not violate
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separation of powers, nor does it

violate the cruel and unusual

punishment."

Basically what the Court stated you should
Took at, or what they deem that should be looked
at, and I think we have done in this caée, would
be -- let me quote so I'm not saying incorrectly.
Requires us to look at:

The duration of a sentence not be

grossly out of proportion with the

severity of the crime.

Pursuant to that, they ask that you look at
three factors: The gravity of the offense compared
to the harshness of the penalty; sentences imposed
by other criminé]s in the same jurisdiction; and
sentences for the same crime in other
jurisdictions. |

In this particular case, Your Honor, he was
convicted of armed robbery back in May of 2001. He
was released in February of 2013, and by August.of
2014 was charged with another armed robbery. That
was .the basis for us seeking life without
possibility of parole. It was not arbitrary, nor
was it based on anything other than the fact that

within 18 months of being let out he was committing
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another armed robbery.

LWOP is allowed in our state. It has been

allowed. It has been up through the Supreme Court

as recent1y.as in State v. Williams, 380 S.C. 336,
669 S.E.2d 640. That was a 2008 case. And, again,
the Court stated<that:
- The sentence of life without
possibility of parole was not cruel
and unusual. -
In that case he received --

THE COURT: What is the case?

MS. SAMPSON: It is State v. Williams. Again,

the case nunber is 380 S.C. 336, 669 S.E.2d 640.
In that case, his first conviction was when he
was ‘17. The second conviction was for drugs. And

he again got an LWOP. And the Court found that

that was within the State's discretion, it was not

against cruel and unusual punishment. If it wasn't
for a drug Conviction, I don't see_how‘jt could be
for two armed robberies. Again, we are é11owed to
do that.v It fs not arbitrary. It was not due to
force him. into doing anything other than getting
punished for the crime that he committed and that a
jury of 12 found him guilty of.

ThereforeQ we think that the sentence should
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be imposed as it already has been and stay at.

MR. RUFFIN: If you will allow me a brief

'response?

THE COURT: Yes.
MR. RUFFIN: Just to be clear. You know, I

think those cases were.uphe]d and I think I may

have said earlier, I know that many T1ife without

paroTe cases have been upheld when the argument to

 the Court was that it was disproportionate to the

crime committed. That is not what I'm‘arguing.

CI'm not arguing to you that it is cruel and unusual

" because it 1s‘disproport16nate to the crime being -

comhitted; I am arguing to you that it is

1_afb1trar11y inflicted at the whim of an individual -

prosecutor.

There are many cases with similar sever1ty
that result --' that do not result in 11fe w1thout
paro1e conv1gt1ons, which was the issue and the
prob]ém {h FUrméh‘Where they»séid -- yéu knbw, Tf'

1si11ke'getf1ng_stfuck by Tightning. I mean, if I

_gave you the facts of 100‘Lw0P-é1igib1e cases and

- asKéd you to pick which ones resulted in 1ife

without pérd]e-and which ones resulted in something.
less, you wouldn't be able to decide. - They are

factually 1ndist1nguishab1e cases that result in
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some getting 1ife without parole based on the
decision of the prosecutor and some not.

So my argument is not that it is
disproportionate, but that it 1is arbitrarily
inflicted at the whim of the prosecutor.

And I would just T1ike to note, Ms. Zmroczek
has pointed out to me a case that she had that is
current]y on appeal -- it is State v. Ard -- where,
she made a similar argument as me, so that argument
is currently being heard on appeal now.

-And I don't believe that my issue, what I'm
raising, has been.decided by our courts.

THE COURT: Okay. A1l right. I will take a
Took at the cases and I w111_gef you all an order.

MR. RUFFIN: Thank you, Judge.

THE COURT: A1l right. Thank you.A

MS. SAMPSON: Thank you, Your Honor.

(WHEREUPON, the proceedings were éonc1uded.)

(END OF TRANSCRIPT)
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- COUNTY OF RICHLAND

CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

R

I, Deborah M. McCurdy, Official Court Reporter for
the Fifth Judicial Circuit of the State of South
Carolina, do hereby certify'thét.thé foregoing 13 a
true, accurate and complete Transcript of Record of the.
proceedings had and evidence fntroduced in the trial of
the captioned case, relative to,appeé1, in the Court of
General Sessions.for Richland County, South Carolina, dn
the 12th day of November, 2015. |

I do further certify that I am neither of kin,

~ counsel nor interest to any party hereto.

March 24, 2016

s | Debarah M. Welurdy, TPR

~Deborah M. McCurdy, RPR
Fifth Circuit Court Reporter
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF GENE SSIONS =
COUNTY OF RICHLAND ) Indictment Numbers: 2014A. EIVED :
| ) 2014GS4007364
The State of South Carolina,
e State of Sou .aro a | ; DEC222015
) NOTICE OF MOTION TO
vs, )  SENTENCE AND DECLARE o) op eals
o) SOUTH.CAROLINA- CODE§17-:%ﬁ\-45 ==
) UNCONSTITUTIONAL g =
Emmanuel Elleby, ) o?:n [} dj‘;?
Defendant.) ’ ol w T 5
| S
TO: ASSISTANT SOLICITOR APRIL SAMPSON: o - RE - 2
CC: THE HONORABLE DEANDREA BENJAMIN f,’,% B st
. m 7 -
YOU WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that counsel will move before thics ouﬁ“on

November 9, 2015 at 9:30 a.m. or, as soon thereafter as this matter may be heard for a motion to
reconsider the defendant’s sentence as being pursuant to an unconstitutional state statute.
Emmanuel Elleby, through undersigned counsel, asserts that South Carolina Code §i7—25-45
violates the Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment and the Eighth Amendment to
the United States Constitution. Therefore, Mr. Elleby respectfully moves this Court to reconsider
his sentenceimposed pursuant t'o this statute. . |
| This notice is also a formal request for the Solicitor's Office to have the abdve-hamed

Defendant transported to the Richland County Judicial Center from the South Carolina Department

of Corrections.

Adam 8. Ruffin”

Attorney for Defendant '
Richland County Public Defender's Ofﬁce
P.O. Box 192

Columbia, South Carolina 29202

(803) 765-2592

Columbia, South Carolina

This 70 day of October, 2015
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STATE OF SOUTHCAROLINA )  IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
S o ) OF THB FIFTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
COUNTY OF RICHLAND g -
e ol _.__:). .. INDICTMENT NO. 2014-GS-40-7355 _/ - N
| Yy 2014-GS-40-7364 -
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, ) -
: ) oo&
) g B T
" ] RECEIVEFy T
. o ) b =
EMMANUEL ELLEBY ) orDER - DEC 2% 5 02
DEFENDANT, ) : E
) .

~ This matter camie before the Court on November 9, 2015 as a mation to reconsider the -

~ above Defendant’s sentence of Life Without the Possibility of Parole (LWOP) as

unconstitutional. Counsel for the Defendant argued that South Carolina Code § 17-25-45
violates the Bquul Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment and the Highth Amendment
to the United States Constitution, For reasons set forth below, the mohou to reconsider the

Defendant’s sentence is demed
CONSTY ONAL] K S TE

Defeadant z';rgues that Sonth Carolina Code § 17-25-45, the LWOP statute, is
unconstitutional. The statute states that, upon & conviction for a most sanous offense as defined
by this section, a person must be sentenced 10 & term of lmprisonment for life without the
possibility of parole is that person has either: (1) one or more prior convictions for: (a) a most

serious offense. . .."* This is.commonly referred to a3 the “Two Strikes” law.? South Carolina

. courts have held numerous times that the LWOP statute is constitutional and is not a violation of

* §.C. Code Ann. § 17-25-45(A)(1).

3 State v. Standard, 351 S.C. 199, 201, 569 S E.2d 3;5/;;7(2002).
1
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equal protection nor cruel and unusual punishme'nt.3 Here, a jury found the Defendant guilty of

Kidnapping* and Robbery/ Atmed Robbery, Robbery While AMeél or Allegedly Armed Witha

935

‘Deadly Weapon®, both of are eligible for a life without parole sentence under the Two Strikes

law .6, Therefore, the 'Defendanf’s sentence of a term of imprisonment of LWOP for the two

strikes was appropriate, and is not 2 violation of Fourteenth and Eighth Amendment rights.

Additionally, the Defendunt argues the prosecutor in this case arbitrarily chose to pursue

LWOP as a sentence recommendation. The South Carolina Coustitution and South Carolina case -

' law place the “unfettered discretion to prosscute™ solely in their hands. . . and they "ﬁn_ay pursne

* acaseto trial, or they may plea bargain it down to a lesser oﬁensc or they may simply decide

not to prosecute the offense in its entirety.”’ It is mponant to note that the prosecutor’s
discretion is subject to constitutional constraints and may not base gdecislorx to prosecute on
unjustifiable standards such as “race, religion, or other arbitrary classifications.”® Further, the
Judicial Branch does not have Lthe power to eacroach on a prosecutor for exercising this
discretion,” The Defendant presented no persuasive evidence to indicate the prosecutor made an

arbitrary decision to take the Defendant’s case to trial. Becauss the prosecutor, in her allowed

| discretion, sought to try the Defendant for two crimes that are under the Two Strikes law, the

st

Defendant’s sentence nust be LWOP if found guilty in accordance to the statute.

3 Stute v, Jones, 344 8,C, 48, 543 8. E.2d 541 (2002); .S'mle v, White, 349, 5.C. 33, 562 $.E.24 305 (2002).
4 i C. Code Ann. § 16-03-0910
38.C. Code Ann. § 16-11-0330 (A) .
f s C. Code Ann. § 17-25-45 (C)(1)
.S‘mtev Needs, 333 8.C. 134, 146, 508 S.E.2d 857, 863 (1998).
Y14,
°rd

0 g.C. Code Ann. § 17-25-45(A)
.2 W
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Por these reasons, the Defe,l_ldant’s motion to reconsider his LWOP sentence is denied,

- IT IS 50 ORDERED.

_p—

* DeAndrea G. Benjamin

Judge, Fifth Judicial Circuit

, 2015
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- Defendant

hereby appear}ln-‘my own: proper person and plead.
'_guilty tothe withln lndlctment orto

ing fully. advlsed asto my:
hts, zhereby walve presentment

Defendanf_" P

B Wltness

:.;'ccc PLS ANDGS. '
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA) o
T | ) INDICTMENT
COUNTY.OF RICHLAND ) ~

At a Court of General Sessuons convened on: novmzn 12 ,";_20,14,

_‘ the Grand Jurors of Rlchland County present upon thelr oath

ARMED ROBBERY

That Emmanuel Bashan Elleby d1d in Rlchland County on or about August o

122, 2014, commit robbery byfelomously takmg from the person or presence of

Kenneth C Gardner by means of force or mt1m1dat10n, goods or monies of Dollar

RGeneral and/or Kenneth C. Gardner, such goods or monies bemg descnbed as U. S
'currency in the amount of three hundred and erghty-seven dollars ($387. 00)

f""and/or ﬁve (5) packs of c1garettes, and/or a cell phone wrth the intent to depnve

.wner permanently of such property, whﬂe armed Wlth a p1stol dlrk, slmgshot, -

knuekles, razor or other deadly weapon, or': h11e allegmg, erther by acnons' :




- of§ — ;plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probatlon for

\‘ STK@F SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
. COUNTY OF Richland ;
STATE VS, ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2014GS4007355
Emmanuel Bashan Elleby ) A/W# _2014A4010203052
A ) Date of Offense: _8/22/2014
Race: _BLACK _Sex: M Age: 34 ) S.C.Code § :_16-11-0330 ?J)
DOB: .. .....0 S8 __ . .. )  CDRCode#: _ 0139 ¢
City,State,Zip! _Columbia. SC 29201 C:
e 222 ) SENTENCE SHEQ‘E 22 2015
*CDL Yeslj No[] CMV Yes[] No[] Haanat YesD No[] ]95
In disposition of t};e said indictment comes now the Defendant who was [X] CONVICTED OF or A@P&a]
TO: Robbery/ Armed Robbery, robbery while armed or allegedly armed with a deadly weapon
in violationof § 16-11-0330(A) of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # . 0139
[[] NON-VIOLENT VIOLENT [JSERIOUS  [X]MOSTSERIOUS [ ]Mandatory GPS(CSC §17-25-45
i : i w/minor 1st or Lewd Act)
The charge is: [X]AsIndicted, [JLesserIncluded Offense, [ ]Defendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. (defendant's initials)
l Wlthout Negotiations or Recommendation, [] Negotiated Sentence, [] Recommendation by the State.
(5%« | |

. SC Bar# Defendant ‘ Attomney for Defendant SC Bar#
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the ljf State Department of Corrections, [] County Detention Center,
for a determinate term of (_‘4 Ce ~days/menthsiyears-or [ | underthe Youthful Offender Act not to exceed years
and/or to pay a fine of $ — ; provided that upon the service of - days/months/years and/or payment

—

months/years and sub_]ect to ‘South Carolina Department of Probahon Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of

prabation, which are. incorporated by reference.
CONCURRENT or {7] CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: =
The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code . § 24-13-40 to be calculated and appIied

y the State Department of Corrections.
(] The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17—25-135

" Pursuant to 18 US.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Crumnal
~ Domestic Vlolence) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition. : ) o

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
DRESTITUTION: [7] Deferred [] Def. Waives Hearing (] Ordered PTU‘P
Total: $ plus 20% fee: s days/hours Public Service Employment

Payment Terms: Obtain GED 00
[ Setby SCDPPPS S Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.
—_— : — May serve W/E begining . '

Recipient: ! Substance Abuse Counseling 0

*Fine: $ Random Drug/Alcohol testing [

§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) $- Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) .- 100 § [t pmts. of § beginning

g 1‘516{ :;;g:') g{nmgit:::f) ." ::go g 5 paid to Public Defender Fund

§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 3 Other:

Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 $ .

§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 $ -

§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) " $150 $

§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) - $50 $ ’ .

§ 56-5-2942(7) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea _§ "[J Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) 85 3 il § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk

3%to County (if paid in installments) - $ 3.90 v during probation.

TOTAL $ r33.90 W

Clerk of Court/ Deputy Clerké—éﬁ (N /yl C/gf i:;:edlggdﬁdge g M/IL v

Court Reporter: o NS Cen vd«v MO sentence Dite:  ~ '? -/ ,7 -[9

SCCA/217 (03/2011)



URT-OF GENERAL SESSIONS
aomER TERM 2014

ARerbeing fully advisedastomy
. -legalrights, | hereby waive presentment -
. “tothe-Grand-Jury. . - . ' o

0¥S

" Defendant

her‘ebyappear;jn ‘my-own:proper person and plead

guilty to the within indictmentor to -

('.

Defendant .

Witness:

'TCE.PLS.ANDGS.



'STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA)
) INDICTMENT
‘COUNTY OF RICHLAND - ) o
At a Court of General Sessmns convened on! NOVMER 12 2014 |

the Grand Jurors of Rlchland County present upon thelr oath

KIDNABPING

That Emmanuel Elieby did in Richland County on or about October
28, 2014;»unlawfully seize, confine, inveigle, decoy, kidnab. abduct or carry.
away one Kenneth C. Gardner, without authority of law, in violation of

Sectlon 1'_7'?6-03-091 0, S. C. Code of Laws; 1976, as:» amended.

CE Agamst the. peace and dignlty of the State and contrary to the o

. A .
i w’ ; S

[
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: statute msuch case made and provrded ' . S L , '




E%%z'E OF SOUTH CAROLINA

) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
~~. COUNTY OF Richland g
STATE VS. ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: __ 2014GS4007364
Emmanuel Elleby )  A/W# _DP14298
ARA: - ) DateofOffense: _10/28/2014
Race: BLACK __Sexx M| : Age: 34 ) 8.C.Code § :_16-03-0910
DOB: SS#: ) CDR Code# 0095
Address: )
City,State,Zip:
DL#: S0l 2 L ~ SENTENCE SHEET
*CDL Yes[ ] No[] CMV Yes[ ] No[] Hazmat Yes[:l No[]
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was CONVICTED OF or [ JPLEADS
TO: Kidnapping / Kidnapping
in violationof § 16-03-0910 ' of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0095
[] NON-VIOLENT VIOLENT [JSERIOUS  [X]JMOST SERIOUS  [JMandatory GPS(CSC m §17-25-45
' : wi/minor st or Lewd Act)
The charge is: As Indicted, [JLesserIncluded Offense, [ JDefendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. (defendant's initials)
Jig [JWithout Negotiations-or Recommendation, " [0 Negotiated Sentence, [] Recommendation by the State.
SC Bar# Defendant Attorney for Defendant SC Bar#
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commlted to the. fﬁ State Department of Corrections, [ ] County Detention Cexfter,
for a determinate term of \FQ days/GREEeaEsor - [ ] under the- Youthful Offender Act not to exceed years
and/or to pay a fme of § T~ ;provided that upon the service of e~ days/months/years and/or payment

T —

of$ .~ ;pluscosts and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended ‘with probation for .

' months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Serv1ces standard condxtmns of

probation, which are incorporated by reference.
m‘ CONCURRENT or [ CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: : :
" The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied

by Yhe State Department of Corrections.
[ The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for 2 person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition.

" SPECIAL CONDITIONS:

DRESTITUTION: 0O Deferred [] Def. Walves Hearlng [ ] Ordered - PTUP )
Total: § plus 20% fee: days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: v _ ObainGED [ '
[J Setby SCDPPPS _ Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.

— ' " May serve W/E begining
Recipient: : : ' Substance Abuse Counseling [
*Fine: $ Random Drug/Alcohol testing O

* § 14-1-206 (Assessments 107 5 %) $ : Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) $100 § v pmts. of $ beginning
14-1-211(A)(2) (DUI Surcharge) $100 S _ . L

g 56.5-2995 (DUI Assessmeat) 512 T ~$- . paidto Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 8 Other: -
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 $
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce, Funding) $25 $ -
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 " §
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 3 .
§ 56-5-2942(7) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea § B [] Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) $5 3 « § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3% to County (if paid in installments) $ 3.90 during probation.
TOTAL $ ¢32.90 :

/ .
‘ e/, Presiding Judge Mﬁ/
Clerk of Court/ Deputy Clerk . Judge Code: Al

CourtReporter: '___ ). € ( Yy s Sentence Date: G9-1775

SCCA/217 (03/2011) : J
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ACKNOWLEDGE}MEN,T BY DEFENDANT
1 understand that if | violate any condition of this Order, a warrant for my arrest will be issued.

I understand and have been informed that ] have a right and obligation to be present at trial and should I fail to attend the court, the trial
will proceed in my absence.
It has been explained to me that if ] fail to appear before the court as required, a warrant for my arrest willbe issued.

licarnes St

ADDRESS
Columbia, SC 29201
“CITYRTATEIZP

251-49-8857 :
"SOCIAL SECORITY NUMBER

SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF RELEASE

a. [J . Placement in custod&. The defendant is placed in the custody of:

NAME OF PERSON OR ORGANIZATION

ADDRESS ¢y YISTATE ZIP TELEPHONE |

who agrees (1) to supervise the defendant as set forth by the court, (2) to use every effort to assure the appearance of the defendant at all scheduled
hearings before the court, and (3) to notify the court immediately in the event the defendant violates any conditions of his release or disappears.

SIGNATURE OF CUST 'ODIAN (IF APPROVED) . DATE

b. [J Restrictions on Travel, Association or Residence. The defendant will comply with each of the following conditions: -

¢. [} Pan-time Release. The defendant will be released from custody from o' clock, to o' clock,
TIME AM/PM - TIME :

on condition that he return to the custody of

on

DATE(S) - NAME OF P N OR ORGANIZATION

a : as designated.
LOCATION

d. [J Other condmons ‘The-defendant will comply with the following other oondmons g?pase:
. No Contaet With Victim directlyfindirectly: Bo Not: Return {o Incident Looation”::

APPEARANCE RECOGNIZANCE WITH SURETY

On the d ¢ dayof )q~ g \ dO / b , personally appeared before(Sxe undersigned judge the

surety named below who acknowledged htmselfI indebted to the State of South Ciiroling, in the sum of § j ) such sum to be
levied on his real and personal property for the use of the State, should named defendant fail in perfonmng the condmons of this Order. '~ -

The surety, being duly.swomn, says that he is a resident and ﬁ'ee holder within the State and is worth the sum acknowledged and
underwritten herein, over all his debts and liabilities, and exclusive of property exempt from execunon

L esa PL:gg 90525206 #
NAME OF SURETY_ BONDS| COMPANY TELEPHONE \TURE OF SURETY BONDSM'AN'

5 cast BoA ﬁ%
ing St —— ‘
, Refezeq
AT st Columbia, SC.29169 SO APR 0 2 2015

“NAVE OF NSURARSEEOESTirety Corp DATE.
Lo nding Suite 200 : . COURT'S . [ .
RESS OF INSURANCE COMPA‘NY EXHIBIT NO.

ADD]

o 4. 729492 - o IDENTIFICATIONEVIDENCE
2 o
UQETY CORP. s -
FoxmP MNQM eral
- Sectip 28 -SEVEN FARMS DR. 5-170 ]‘)5 C 1000 33 81 SCCA/S11A (Revised 3/2012)

5% 21 FSTON, SC 29492
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Criminal Charging Document No.
BAIL P:*JCEEDING
FORM II )
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ' INTHE Richland County General Sessions
COUNTY OF Richland :
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ORDER SPECIFYING METHODS AND CONDITIONS OF RELEASE

v.

Elleby, Emmanuel Bashan
NAME OF DEFENDANT

Offense Charged: Armed Robbery-[2014A4010203052]

At a bail proceeding conducted by the undersigned judge, for the defendant named above, it was determined by the court (check one or both):
O The release of the defendant on recognizance will not reasonably assure his appearance as required.
[ The release of the defendant on recognizance will result in an unreasonable danger to the commumty
This determination was based upon the following findings of fact: L
Nature of Circumstances of Offense; Must Notify Court Immediately of Change of Address;  ****For any charge that carries a

Suspension of your driver's license, YOU are required [O bring and surrender your drivers license 10 ﬂte Tourt at the time of {

[Considerations: Nature and Circumstances of the offense charged, the defendant's family ties, employment, financial resources, character and mental condition, the
length of his residence in the community, his record of convictions, and any record of flight to avoid prosecution or failure 1o appear at other court proeeedmgs ]

~ THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED:

1, That the above named defendant be released from custody on the condition that he will personally appear before the designated court at the
place, date and time required to answer the charge made against him and do what shall be ordered by the court and not depart the State without the
permission of the court and be of goed behavior..

2. That the above named defendant be released from custody provnded as follows (check all that apply):

CASH IN LIEU OF BOND |

[0 The defendant, acknowledges himseif to be indebted to the Slato of South Carolina in the sum of $ ) - to secure his release from
custody. Should the defendant fail to comply with all terms ‘and conditions of this Order, this sum of money is subject to being forfeited to the State.

CASH PERCENTAGE IN LIEU OF BOND
[0 The defendant, acknowledging himself to be indebted to the State of South Carolina in the full amount of § , his release to be

obtained by payment to the court of % (not to exceed 10%) of the full amount of the bond, deposits § to secure his release -
from custody. Should the defendant fail to perform the condmons of this Order, the full amount shall be levied on his real and personal property for -
_the use of the state.

APPEARANCE RECOGNIZANCE WITH SURETY

- The defendant will provide good and sufficient sure approved by the court, in the form hereinafer set forth in this Order, aclmowledgmg an
debtedness to the State in the amount of $

3. That the defendant shall appear at (checkone): . " v L omMAy 8 ro/>S

X the tem of . o ‘COURT.OF GENERAL SESS]ONS e hegmmng on Sep&mbee%ﬁﬂ 9:00. -0’ clock, AM:
at Richland County General Sessions ~ 1701 Main Street/P O Box 192/Columb1a, $C.29202./ (803) 576-1999-
. and remain there throughout that term of court. If no disposition is made during that term, the defendant shall appear and remain throughout
each succeeding term of court until final dlsposmon is made of his case, unless otherwise ordered by the court.

10O thesessionof T IMAGISTRATE COURT _ [ MUNICIPAL COURT beginning on at ___ oclock, ___
at ]
If no final dlsposmon is made during that sessmn, the defendant shall appear at such other times and places as ordcred by the court.
Bond Amount(s): $60,000.00 (CS) of $6000000(SB) . " INITIALS OF DEFENDANT . 5%
paibuoll 12asdinor. 2ol dii.
4. That the defendant will notify the court promptly if he changes his address from the one contained in thigardes and he will gomply with those

conditions described hereinafter in the Order.

DATE

ORIGINAL AND ONE COPY OF THIS FORM ARE TO BE COMPLETED IN EVERY BAIL PROCEEDING IN WHICH IT IS USED
SCCA/511A (Revised 3/2012) Original Copy For The Trial Court - Copy For The DefendBBC»D YTIAUR OTTIM 1A G

I » St emMALT v
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
COUNTY OF RICHLAND )
)
The State ) NOTICE OF INTENTION TO SEEK A
: ) SENTENCE OF LIFE WITHOUT PAROLE
-vs- ) . R
, ) Indictment Nos.: 2014GS407355, 7364
EMMANUEL ELLEBY, )
)
Defendant. )

TO: Emmanuel Elleby, Defendant, and Adam Ruffin, Attorney for Emmanuel Elleby

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that upon conviction (trial or guilty plea) of the above-entitled
action to be scheduled on a date at least ten (10) days hence, of which you havé been timely
notified, the State will seek a sentence of life imprisonment without the possibility of parole,
pursuant to South Carolina Code of Laws, Section 17—25745 (1995), as amended. The Stafe
intends to rely upon the following prior conviction of the defendant to statutorily enhange his
punishmént: | | |

South Carolina conviction for Armed Robbei'y on May 8, 2001.

Do g

Dan Johnson, Solicitor
Fifth Judicial Circuit

Columbia, South Carolina

st |
This |~ day of September, 2015
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CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL FOR APPELLANT

.Counsel for appellant certifies that this Record on Appeal contains all material proposed
to be included by any of the parties and not any other material and that this Record on Appeal
complies to the best of my ability with the April 15, 2014 order from the South Carolina
Supreme Court entitled “Revised Order Concerning Personal Identifying Information and Other
Sensitive Information in Appellate Court Filings.”

Respectfully Submitted, |

Kathrine H. Hudgins é

Appellate Defender

South Carolina Commission on Indigent Defense
Division of Appellate Defense

- PO Box 11589
Columbia, S.C. 29211-1589

ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANT

- This 8th day of March, 2017. \

MAR 08 2817
§G Court of Appeals



